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1. Question: I have reviewed the RFP documents for the above referenced solicitation 
and I see that there are references to Card Access & CCTV security 
systems on the drawings, but there does not appear to be anything listed 
in the spec.  Are these systems going out for bid under another 
solicitation?  We have done work for NASA in the past and would like 
an opportunity to bid this work. 

 
 Answer: Card access and CCTV security systems for the Collaborative Support 

Facility will be obtained under a separate contract 
 
2. Question: Please describe the lines of authority and lines of communication in 

relation to the Contracting officer (yourself), the Project Manager 
(Raymond Schuler), and the Construction Manager (Peter Goldsmith). 

 
 Answer: Mr. Schuler, Mr. Goldsmith, and I are a dedicated team for the 

Collaborative Support Facility.  We are physically located in the same 
building and can quickly access each other when needed.  I will be the 
Contracting Officer.  I am the only person on the team that has the 
authority to enter into the contract, administer the contract, and make 
changes to the contract.  I am response for ensuring the contractor 
performs all of the requirements of the contract and safeguards the 
interests of the Government in its contractual relationship.  After 
contract award, I will delegate authority to Peter Goldsmith to be the 
Contracting Officer's Technical Representative (COTR).  He will handle 
the day to day management of the project, receive and approve 
submittals and reports, and ensure quality assurance.  However, the 
COTR does not have authority to make changes to the contract.  
Raymond Schuler is the Project Manager.  Mr. Schuler is involved with 
the design aspect of the project.  He will work with the COTR regarding 
any changes to the design and will provide funds for changes to the 
contract if needed.  The point of contact for the contractor will change 
for different submittals and issues.  The team will address these 
situations during the post-award conference. 

  
3. Question: Addendum #4 adds qualifications for the Safety Officer (SSHO). Is this 

Safety Officer and the Safety Manager denoted in the RFP intended to 
be the same person? If so, the addendum stipulates the SSHO be full 
time on-site while the Q&A #1 allows that the Safety Manager may be 
part-time. Please clarify. 

  
 Answer:  The project Safety Officer and the Safety Manager can be the same 

individual. The requirement is for this person to be on site at all times 



RFP NNA09273580R 
COLLABORATIVE SUPPORT FACILITY 

NASA AMES RESEARCH CENTER 
 

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS #3 
 

 

Page 2 of 12 
 

when construction activities are in progress.  However, this individual 
may take on other responsibilities, in addition to health and safety.  It is 
important that the Contractor's proposal clearly describes the 
qualifications and duties of the Safety Manager and the amount of time 
that will be allocated to this position. 

 
4. Question: There is an AISC requirement for both Fabricator and Erector. Roscoe 

Steel is AISC Certified as well as our erector.  How will this be 
monitored at bid time to make sure those bidding meet the requirement?  
We are prepared to provide our AISC Certification with our proposal to 
the contractors and to you if necessary.  

 
 Answer: The AISC Certification is a contract requirement that will be verified.  

The certification is not specifically listed as a requirement of the 
proposal, but may be included at the Offeror's discretion.  Please note 
the page limitation on the proposals. 

 
5. Question: The finish schedule states the C2 carpet is to go in the center aisle of the 

open area yet I don’t see this aisle delineated on the floor plan? Please 
clarify the extent of the C2 carpet.   

 
 Answer: Refer to reference sheets G101 and G102 for the location of the future 

center aisle in the open area. 
 
6. Question: 1. 260513-3, 2.2, E. - If the conductors need to be filled, does NASA 

understand that this is not "stock" for MV-105 cables and will require 
minimum manufacturing quantities in the range of 5,000 - 10,000 feet 
for each conductor size with long lead times in the range of 8-12 weeks 
ARO?  Note: There is no great benefit to a filled conductor in an EPR 
insulated cable; however, it could be considered a help to keep 
premature treeing from occurring in an XLP insulated cable. 

 
 Answer: The answers to your pre-proposal inquiries/RFIs are answered in our 

Questions and Answers #2 document and Amendments 5 and 7 posted to 
NASA's Business Opportunities website at  
http://procurement.nasa.gov/cgi-bin/EPS/bizops.cgi?gr=D&pin=21. 

 
7. Question:  260513-3, 2.2, F. and G. - Insulation is listed twice in the specification, 

once for cross-linked polyethylene (XLP) and again for ethylene 
propylene rubber.  Which insulation is to be used?  Note: EPR is by far 
the leading insulation used in industrial applications. 
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 Answer: Please see Questions and Answers #2 document and Amendments 5 and 
7 posted to NASA's Business Opportunities website at 
http://procurement.nasa.gov/cgi-bin/EPS/bizops.cgi?gr=D&pin=21. 

 
8. Question: 260513-3, 2.2, H. and I. - Shielding is listed twice in the specification, 

once for a copper tape shield and again for embedded drain wires in a 
CPE jacket.  Which is to be used? Note: A 5 mil copper tape with a 
minimum 12-1/2% overlap is by far the construction found in industrial 
applications. 

 
 Answer: Please see Questions and Answers #2 document and Amendments 5 and 

7 posted to NASA's Business Opportunities website at 
http://procurement.nasa.gov/cgi-bin/EPS/bizops.cgi?gr=D&pin=21. 

 
9. Question: 4. 260513-3, 2.2, I. and J. - Cable jacket is listed twice in the 

specification, once as a chlorinated polyethylene jacket and again as a 
Chlorosufonated polyethylene, CPE.  Note: CPE jacketing in MV-105 
constructions is not standard in the industry, nor is CSPE.  PVC is the 
more common jacketing found on MV-105 cables used in industrial 
applications. 

 
 Answer: Please see Questions and Answers #2 document and Amendments 5 and 

7 posted to NASA's Business Opportunities website at 
http://procurement.nasa.gov/cgi-bin/EPS/bizops.cgi?gr=D&pin=21. 

 
10. Question: Is there anyway we can change the Past Performance criteria from 50% 

complete or completed in the last three years to 50% complete or 
completed in the last five years in order to show our most relevant fully 
certified projects, as it takes some time to get actual certification?  

  
 Answer: The Past Performance evaluation factor will not be revised. 
  
11. Question:  Many of our Army Corp of Engineer Projects are designed and built to 

LEED Silver Certification but do not actually go through the LEED 
Certification process. Would this requirement to not go through the 
LEED Certification project be viewed negatively against a project that 
went through the process or would it even be viewed as relevant? 

   
 Answer: Prior experience with the LEED certification process is relevant and 

important.  Projects that are not submitted for LEED certification may 
not provide the experience completing USGBC documentation 
requirements.  Also, if a project is not submitted for USGBC 
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certification, it might not have received an independent evaluation of the 
contractor's success meeting the LEED performance goals. 

   
12. Question: Many of our current projects are pending LEED Certification. Would 

this status of pending be viewed negatively against a project that is 
already certified or would it even be viewed as relevant? 

  
 Answer: Projects submitted to the USGBC for LEED certification may be 

relevant; however, a project that has attained certification would 
demonstrate recognized success and accomplishment.  

  
 13. Question:  There are discrepancies between what drawings were listed on sheet 

G001 and in Section C.  The drawings missing from sheet G001 are: 
G003, G004, G005, G006, G007, G100, L001, L102, A108, A200, 
A213, A214, A223, A224, S233, FP224, FP231, FP232, FP233, and 
FP234 that are listed in Section C.  The drawings missing from Section 
C list are: C302, C303, C304, C903, L101, L403, L500, L501, L502, 
L551, L552, L553, L554, L555, L603, L604, L605, L606, A110, A111, 
A112, A121, A122, A261, A262, A271, A272, A312, A502, A503, 
A643, A704, A705, A712, A713, A721, A804, S008, S009, S311, S602, 
FA215, FA216, FA501, M305, P402, P403, P404, P501, P502, P503, 
E141, E332, E909, E910, E111, E112, E113, E114, and E115 but are 
shown on drawing G001. Drawing E915 was not issued.  Please issue 
the missing drawings not included in the bid set dated 4/30/09 and 
update section C.  

  
 Answer: This discrepancy has been corrected by Amendment. 
  
 14. Question: Specification section 018113.1.8.D.4.a has the Project Access ID for 

LEED-Online. However, the number that is listed is for a different 
project, not for this project. Please clarify. 

  
 Answer: The designer's current LEED checklist has been posted.  No additional 

information can be obtained from the LEED-Online site for this project.  
The LEED-Online Access ID for this project will be provided to the 
contractor after contract award. 

   
15. Question: Will all RFI's be shared with all proposers. If not, will the pertinent 

RFI's be shared via Amendment.  
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 Answer: All RFIs are shared with prospective offerors as a Question and Answer 
document on NASA's Business Opportunities website at 
http://procurement.nasa.gov/cgi-bin/EPS/bizops.cgi?gr=D&pin=21 .    

 
16. Question: Our bid needs to be valid for 120 days, but the options need to be valid 

for 180 days. Shouldn't the bids and options have the same duration? 
Please review. 

  
 Answer: These requirements are completely different.  First, 

the proposals  (technical and prices for the base item and options 
items) must be valid for 120 days from the proposal due date  for the 
Government to make contract award .   If all options are not awarded 
with the basic contract, the option clause (FAR 52.217-7) states the 
options will be available to the Government for 180 calendar days after 
award should.   

  
17. Question: Specification §32 13 13.2.2.B.2 lists no manufactures meeting the 

requirement for materials extracted and manufactured with 500 miles of 
the project site.  Please specify manufacturers complying Local/Regional 
Materials provisions of Specification §01 60 00. 

  
 Answer: We assume this reference should be to specification section 321314.  

There are plants within 500 miles of the project site that manufacture 
quality precast concrete pavers meeting the specification performance 
requirements.  Alternate products will be evaluated during the submittal 
process for these items. 

  
 18. Question: Specification §32 13 13.3.2.A requires the vacuum cleaning of concrete 

substrates.  Reviewing the plans and details no locations to have a 
concrete substrate for precast pavers are shown.  Please refer to locations 
on plans and details where precast pavers have a concrete substrate. 

  
 Answer: We assume this reference should be to specification section 321314.  

There are no locations where the Contractor is required to install a 
concrete substrate for the precast pavers. 

  
 19. Question: Detail 01/A752 shows a 1.5" layer of "Cane Detection Area - Smooth 

Pebble Stone in Conc. Topping."  However, specification §03 30 00 
neither specifies rounded aggregates nor identifies the finish required at 
the cane detection area.  Please specify desired aggregates and finish at 
cane detection area. 
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 Answer: This material was actually a tile material that has been revised 
by Amendment 7. 

 
20. Question: Specification Section 013200, 2.2, L, 2 states:  Subject to compliance 

with requirements, use MS Project or equivalent scheduling program 
acceptable to Contracting Officer.  Use latest version or earlier 
version acceptable to The Government.   Is Primavera P3 an acceptable 
equivalent to the Government, for which to submit all construction 
schedules? 

   
 Answer: Yes, Primavera P3 would be an acceptable format for required schedule 

submittals.  
   
21. Question: Drawing A-105 - Finish Schedule: VCT-1 indicates that this product is a 

sheet vinyl. VCT-1 is to be placed over the access floor meaning NASA 
will not be able to gain access to the under floor area after this product is 
installed.  

  
 Answer: The sheet material shall be cut to fit each access floor tile. 
  
 22. Question: Specification section 096813, Part 2.2E Size: 50cmx50cm (19.7"x19.7") 

the specified carpet tiles are smaller than the raised panels, carpet 19.7" 
x 19.7" and panels 24" x 24". Please clarify that the specified carpet tile 
sizes are correct.  

  
 Answer: Yes, the specified carpet size is correct.  The carpet tiles may be all 50 

cm x 50cm square tiles or all 24" x 24" square tiles at the contractor's 
option. 

   
 23. Question: Specification Section 096900, Part 1.2.C Quantity Allowances: Provide 

the following as specified in Division 01 Section "Allowances". Please 
provide Allowance Specification and/or provide quantities we are to 
include in our Base Bid. 

  
 Answer: The contractor shall provide all cutouts required in the access floor tiles, 

plus 10 extra cutouts for floor diffusers and 10 extra cutouts for 
electrical floor boxes. 

  
24. Question: Specification Section 096900, Part 1.8.A: Carpet Manufacture to review 

Access Floor submittal for coordination with carpet tile requirement. 
Please clarify this statement. What coordination is the Architect 
implying to? 
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 Answer: Coordinate for compatibility of floor panels and carpet and carpet 

adhesive, installation schedule, and any other relevant topics regarding 
these two items of work. 

  
 25. Question: Specification Section 122413, Part 2.4.D.5,6,7: (Bid Option) Virtual 

Shade Override Control Switch (SolarTrac System):  Please clarify 
which bid options these items should be priced under.   

  
 Answer: This item will be addressed in the amendment to be released June 7th. 
  
 26. Question: Specification Section 077200, Part 3.2.E and F: Heat and Smoke Vent 

and Gravity Ventilator. Please clarify that these items are NOT required. 
If they are, please provide drawing number and location(s).  

  
 Answer: This item will be addressed in the amendment to be released June 7th. 
  
 27. Question: Drawing G101 and G102 indicates the floor finishes required for the 

project. Please clarify that these are the drawings we are to base our bid 
on for the floor finishes.  Drawings A211, A212, A221 and A222 
currently do not show all the rooms required. 

  
 Answer: Floor finishes are called out on sheet A105.  Sheets G101 and 102 are 

for reference only. 
  
 28. Question: Specification Section 320190, Part 2 - Products: 2.1.1 - General 

(Standard Bid) and 2.1.2 - General (Alternate Bid #1). Please clarify 
under which option Alternate Bid #1 should be priced. 

  
  Answer: This item will be addressed in the amendment to be released June 7th. 
  
29. Question: Specification Section 329300: Landscape Planting. The specification has 

multiple "Standard Bids" and "Alternate Bid #1's" listed through-out. 
Please clarify under which option Alternate Bid #1 should should be 
priced. 

  
 Answer: This item will be addressed in the amendment to be released June 7th. 
 
30. Question: Specification Section 085113 – Aluminum Windows- 2.8.E.c- Names 

Functional Fenestration as the basis of design for the electric window 
operators.  Specifically, Models UCS Master and UCS Twinmaster. Per 
FFI, these operators are an older design that were specified because their 
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newer design did not have UL approval. The newer design, UCS Quasar 
and UCS Twin Quasar-Synchro, now have a UL rating.  The advantages 
of the new design are: 

  -Self adjusting open and close stop limits that do not require adjustment 
and minimize  installation and maintenance cost. 

  -Low profile cast aluminum case that is commercial grade and visually 
simple 

  -Conforms with UL 325 safety standard for motorized windows. 
  Is the use of the UCS Quasar and UCS Twin Quasar-Synchro, by 

Functional Fenestration, acceptable?  
 
 Answer: Yes, provided these operators met all performance requirements of the 

specifications. 
 
31. Question: Specification Section 107301- Light Shelf Daylighting Panels -1.3.I.3- 

Says Maintenance Data should include operating hardware. The light 
shelves are a fixed installation. What operating hardware is being 
referred to?    

 
 Answer:  This is an error.  There is no operating hardware 
 
32. Question: -1.4.D- Requires that light shelf daylighting panels must have the fire-

test response characteristics indicated.  Where are these characteristics 
indicated? Also, Kawneer, the basis of design, per 2.2.1, does not have 
fire testing of this product. Will job specific testing be required? 

 
 Answer: No such testing will be required. 
 
33. Question: -1.6.A.1.b-calls for the warranty to include faulty operators. Which 

operators are being referred to? 
 
 Answer: This is an error.  There are no operators for the light shelves. 
 
34. Question: -2.3.A.2- Calls for the light shelves to have minimum .08 inch thick top 

and bottom aluminum sheet.  Kawneer, the basis of design, 
manufactures the Inlighten System with 3 or 4mm aluminum composite 
panels on the top and bottom. Is the use of composite panels acceptable? 

 
 Answer: Yes, composite panels are acceptable 
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35. Question: -3.3.A- Calls for the light shelf panels to be adjusted to operate 
smoothly. These panels are a fixed installation. What operation is being 
referred to? 

 
 Answer: This is an error.  These panels are fixed and do not operate. 
 
36. Question: -3.5.A- Refers to training of Government’s maintenance personnel in 

adjustment and operation of the light shelves. Again, the light shelves 
are a fixed installation. What operation is being referred to?  

 
 Answer: There is no training required.  
 
37. Question: Specification Section 08710- Door Hardware -3.7- The Door Schedule 

on Pg. A102 calls for Dr. # D101 to be a Type E and use Door Hardware 
Set No. 1. Door Hardware Set No.1 includes Butt Hinges and a Von 
Duprin Rim Panic Device which are not applicable to an All Glass Door 
(Type E).  Please provide a hardware set appropriate for use on an All 
Glass Door. 

 
 Answer: All door hardware for Door D101 shall be supplied  by the Door 

Manufacturer. 
 
38. Question: Specification Section 084413 – Glazed Aluminum Curtainwalls- 

1.5.M.1- Refers to Manufactured Curtain Walls to be labeled by the 
manufacturer for energy performance in accordance with NFRC. The 
Basis of Design for the curtainwalls, Kawneer 1600, is a field 
assembled, stick built system and not a Manufactured Curtain Wall 
which, by definition, is factory assembled as a unit. Will NFRC 
Certification be required for the field assembled system specified for this 
project? If NFRC certification is required, is computer modeling, 
extrapolated from testing of similar products acceptable? 

 
 Answer: NFRC Certification will be required.  Computer modeling, extrapolated 

from testing of similar products is acceptable. 
 
39. Question: In the solicitation under Mission Suitability one of the elements is Key 

Personnel.  We are supposed to include a Commission Agent as one of 
our key people however in the specifications section 019113.00-1 under 
1.1 Description B. is states that the Commissioning Agent will be hired 
by the Government directly.  Is the government still looking for a 
specific Commission Agent as a part of the general contractor’s team?   

 



RFP NNA09273580R 
COLLABORATIVE SUPPORT FACILITY 

NASA AMES RESEARCH CENTER 
 

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS #3 
 

 

Page 10 of 12 
 

 Answer: The Government will hire the Commissioning Authority for this project.  
However the Contractor is required to provide a qualified, responsible 
person to work with the Government on commissioning the mechanical 
and electrical systems.  The responsibilities of each party are provided in 
the specifications. 

 
40. Question: How big are the Govt. furnished wood panels?   
 
 Answer: The size of the material is provided in specification section 096400.  
  
41. Question: What is the species of the wood reclaimed? 
 
 Answer: The reclaimed wood material is 3/4" thick oak strip flooring.   
  
42. Question: Can the wood be finished offsite and brought back to the site? 
 
 Answer: The wood flooring can be finished offsite at the contractor's option. 
  
43. Question: How is the wood to be attached to the walls? 
 
 Answer: The wood paneling has been deleted from the contract.  This will no 

longer be required.  
 
44. Question: What kind of veneer or skin are we to use on the paint grade wood 

doors? The specification calls for interior solid core doors with a 
transparent stain and does not address paint grade doors. The 
specification call for Plyboo bamboo veneer, Amber flat grain veneer. 
Should we use those types of veneers for paint grade wood doors?   

  
 Answer: For paint grade doors, use plane sliced birch. 
   
44. Question: The specifications or drawings do not call out any STC rating for the 

doors. What should the rating be for door type H (sound doors)?  
  
 Answer: Type H doors shall have an STC rating of 50.  
   
45. Question: The specification or drawings do not describe the P-lam finish that is 

required for the two shower doors. Please advise what type of P-lam 
should be on doors #D205A and D206A on the shower side. 

  
 Answer: See drawing A105, PML-4 color and pattern 2550 Iridescent Pewter, 

finish Erre. 
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46. Question: The carpet rep. from Interface and he said carpet 2's spec was a 

collection of 3 different styles, 2 styles costing the same, Color Lines & 
Highlines and 1 costing different, Baselines. Which one does the 
architect have in mind. 

  
 Answer: Use "Outside the Lines" - Style: BASELINE; color: Stone. 
 
47. Question: Can enclosed structural steel be shop primed with an industry standard 

SSPC-SP2 surface preparation? 
  
 Answer:   The surface preparation requirements for the interior structural steel will 

be address in an amendment to be issued June 7th. 
 
48. Question: Hollow Metal Frames with transom louvers can not be rated. How 

should we bid these?    

 Answer: On drawing A102, the details for Type B and Type F doors contain the 
note "Louver where scheduled".   No rated doors in the schedule call for 
louvers. 

49. Question: Maximum louver size in rated doors can only be 24 x 24. Drawings call 
for Type B and F doors to have full height louvers ????  

 Answer: See answer for question #1 above, no rated doors call for full height 
louvers. 

50.  Question: Wood doors call out for Bamboo veneer. Bamboo is not FSC Certified.  
Please advise.   

 Answer: Yes, plyboo veneer is currently not FSC Certified. 

51. Question: STC Rating for Sound Doors Type H are not called out.  Please specify  

 Answer: Type H doors shall have an STC rating of 50.  
  
52. Question: Regarding Carpet Tiles: 1. CPT2 Carpet Tile. "Outside the Lines" has 

pricing for different Styles within the group selected. Since there are two 
different areas of CPT2 shown. One in center walk way of open areas 
and one for the remaining field.    Please specify the different Styles.  

 
 Answer: Use "Outside the Lines" - Style: BASELINE; color: Stone. 
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